
ABSTRACT 

(R. Andrews, 8-77) 

139 North Potomac Street Sit~) 

Hagerstown 

Washington County, Maryland 

circa 1894 

Tentatively scheduled for demolition, this building is one 

of the finest examples of late nineteenth century, center city, 

upper income, domestic architecture in Hagerstown. Built on a high 

foundation with two and a half stories and a high roof, the house 

is a Romanesque style structure with Queen Anne elements. The 

building is an important element in the streetscape, offering 

whimsical relief from the staid lines of the neighboring structures. 

The house was erected about 1894 as the residence of 

Abraham E. Albert, a businessman and banker. Albert purchased the 

property in 1893 and retained it until 1920 when it was sold to 

Fred E. Kraiss, a Hagerstown funeral director. The Kraiss family 

owned the house until the present owner, the YMCA, acquired it in 

1961. The land upon which the house stands is the northern half of 

Lot No. 40 as delineated on the original plat of the city. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Albert-Kraiss House stands at 139 North Potomac Street in Hagerstown, 
Washington County, and is located on the west side of the street in the 
northern fourth of the block formed by Franklin and Church Streets, the second 
block north of Public Square. 

The building is a circa 1894, center city, upper income, Romanesque 
style house with Queen Anne elements, Rectangular in shape, the structure is 
built on a high foundation abutting the sidewalk and has two and a half stories 
with a steeply pitched mansard roof along the south and east elevations. The 
building appears to be structurally sound. The exterior is nearly in original 
condition.· The side exterior walls are painted and laid in Common bond (six to 
one}. The facade is unpainted and laid in Stretcher bond. 

The facade is irregular in massing and has a second story projecting 
bow window which rises into the top story as a conical peaked tower. The bow 
window has a flower-like corbel base. The facade windows have double-hung, 
wooden sashes with one-over-one lights and round arches with brick voussoirs. 
There are three windows on the two levels of the tower, two large windows below 
the corbel base, and a single window in the doorway. A rectangular window 
dormer with a gable roof is on the top floor above the door. 

The facade foundation wa 11 is constructed of rock-faced rectangular 
stone and rises up to the sills of the first floor windows. The foundation 
wall is capped with a Classical caretto molding. A stone belt course with low 
relief dentils simulating a shallow cornice separates the first and second 
floors. A band of decorative brickwork (raised diamond shapes) runs below the 
belt course. A dentiled, wooden cornice with architrave and cyma recta molding 
runs along the south and east elevations. 

The facade doorway has a round arch with brick voussoirs and a rock­
faced keystone. Below the round transom is a pair of glazed wooden doors with 
metal tracery. A later metal marquise supported by two chains hangs over the 
entrance. The doors are recessed slightly and are reached by a steep step of 
stone steps. 

The mansard roof is concaved with Gothic crockets. It is covered with 
slate shingles with decorative pattern banding. Two rectangular window gables 
are located along the south elevation to the west of a brick chimney with 
decorative brickwork. The dormer roofs are also concave shaped. A ball finial 
sitting on a high square base is located in the northeast corner at the base of 
the roof. 

A two and a half story round tower projects from the southwest corner 
of the building. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Tentatively scheduled for demolition, this building is one of the finest 
examples of late nineteenth century, center city, upper income, domestic archi­
tecture in Hagerstown. Built on a high foundation with two and a half stories 
and a high roof, the house is a Romanesque style structure with Queen Anne 
elements. The building is an important element in the streetscape, offering 
whimsical relief from the staid lines of the neighboring structures. 

The house was erected about 1894 as the residence of Abraham E. Albert 
(1858-1934), a businessman and banker. Albert purchased the property in 1893 
(Deed Book 101, p. 343) and retained it until 1920 when it was sold to Fred W. 
Kraiss, a Hagerstown funeral director (Deed Book 159, p. 384). The Kraiss family 
owned the house until the present owner, the YMCA, acquired it in 1961. The land 
upon which the house stands is the northern half of Lot No. 40 as delineated on 
the original plat of the city. 

Abraham Albert was a shoemaker in early years with shoemaking shops on 
South Potomac Street and Public Square before opening a retail shoe business. 
Between 1892 and 1895, he operated a wholesale liquor business in Hagerstown. A 
Republican, Albert was elected a County Commissioner in 1899 and served as 
President for two years. He was also director of several local companies 
(Williams, II, 1054-1055). 

Kraiss was issued a permit for erecting a 5' x 8' "copper clad marquise 11 

in 1929 (Building Inspector's Office). 

Now vacant, the house was used in recent years as a Mormon Temple. 
It is scheduled for demolition for future expansion of 11 Y11 facilities. 

NOTE: William Morgan noted in his report (1970) the similarity 
of the building to those designed by Wilson Eyre, the 
Philadelphia architect. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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The property measures approximately 42' x 240'. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

139 North Potomac Street is presently a Mormon temple, 
however, it was probably built as a private residence, or 
maybe for offices, etc. Built on a high stone ba~se, 139 
is a 3 storey brick house with the top storey actually 
part of a mansard roof. The most conspicuous feature of 
the house is the projecting bow window-tower that appears 
to grow out of the wall just below the second storey 
(it has a flower-like corbel base seemingly supporting it) 
and continues up through the mansard roof (where it is 
still red brick), culminating in a banded, slate conical 
peak. The front facade windows have rounded heads with 
brick voussoirs and fairly simple cornices between first 
and second storeys, at main roof level, and at the base 
of the tower peak. A later metal marquee hangs suspended 
over the entrance, making the recessed entrance vestibule 
seem even deeper. 
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Not unlike the almost fanciful urban houses of the 

Philadelphia architect, Wilson Eyre, 139 North Potomac 

Street is a late Romanesque Revival style house with 

Queen Anne elements. A definite addition to the streetscape 

of this section of North Potomac, 139's tower echoes that 
on the Firehouse further down the block [105 North Potomac] 

and acts as a foil for the slightly set back and large 

Colonial Revival YMCA next door. 
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SITE: 139 North Potomac Street 
Hagerstown 
Washington County, Maryland 

map: City of Hagerstown , 
Washington County, Md, 
City Engineering Dept. 
July, 1970 
scale 1"=1200' 
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